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I. INTRODUCTION

1. This Complaint, Comphance Order, and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing
(“Order™) is issued pursuant to Section 3008(a) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (“RCRA"), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), and th;s Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Adminmistrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action
Orders, and the Revocation, Termination, or Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

Respondents, W and E Intemational Trading Company (“W and E”), Mr. Ziliang Zhu (“Ziliang




Zhu"), and SM Metals, L.L.C. (“SM Mét;ﬂs”) are hereby notified that the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) alleges that Respondents violated Sections 3002
and 3017 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6922 and 6938, the regulations implementing RCRA at 40
C.F.R. Parts 261 and 262, and the EPA-authorized Washington dangerous waste management
regulations set forth in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-303 ef seq. by failing
to properly manage hazardous wastes. This Order also provides notice of compliance
measures that must be undertaken by Respondents to address these violations as well as
Respondents’ opportunity to request a hearing.

IT. NATURE OF ACTION

<

2. This 1s an action commenced pursuant to Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.

§ 6928(a), ordering Respondents to come into compliance with Sections 3002 and 3017 of
RCRA, 42 US.C. §§ 6922 and 6938, the regulations implementing RCRA at 40 C.F.R. Parts
261 and 262, and the EP A-authorized Washington dangerous waste management regulations
set forth in the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-303 ef seg.

3. Notice of commencement of this action has been given to the State of
Washington (“Washington”) pursuant to Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(2a)(2).

1. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

4. In 1976, Congress enacted RCRA, amending the Solid Waste Disposal Act, to
regulate hazardous waste management. The Hazardous Waste and Solid Waste Amendments
of 1984 (HSWA) provides additional authority under RCRA to regulate hazardous wastes.
Under Subtitle C of RCRA, RCRA Section 3001 ef seg., 42 U.S.C. § 6921 ef seg., EPA has the

authority to identify and list hazardous wastes. RCRA Subtitle C also authorizes EPA to




regulate hazardous waste generators, trzfn;porters, exporters, and the owners and operators of
hazardous waste treatment, storage, and disposal facibities. EPA has promulgated federal
regulahions to implement RCRA Subtitle C, which are set forth at 40 CF.R. Parts 260-270,
273, and 279,

5. Section 300B(}of RCRA, L2 38 (. § 6?2&{3@ authonzes the EPA
Administrator 1o issue orders requiring comphance fmmedistely or within a specified time for
vicdation of any requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA, ROBA Bection 3001 efseq., 42 USC §
6Y21 2l sey.

8. The Administrator has delegated the authority to issue compliance orders in
Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 US.C. § 6928(a), tu the Iﬁ};"ector of the Office of C.Dl_np}iﬁii{_}@
and Enforcement, EPA Region 10,

7. Pursuan;; to Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.B.C. § 6926, EPA may suthorize a
siate to administer its hazardous waste program in lieu of the federal program when EFA
deems the state program to be equivalent to the federal program,

LS Washington mitially received final authorizstion on January 30, 1986, effective
January 31, 1986 (81 FR 3782}, to implement the Siate’s dangerous waste management
program. EPA granted authorization for changes to Washinglon's program on September 22,
1987, effective on Movernber 23, 1987 (52 FR 35556); August 17, 1980, effective Qulober 16,
1990 (55 FR 33695y, Novemmber 4, 1994, effective November 4, 1994 (39 FR 55322); February
29,1995, effective April 29, 1996 {61 FR 7736); September 22, 1988, effective October 22,

1998 (63 FR 50531); October 12, 1999, effective January 11, 2000 (64 FR $5142); April 11,
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2002, effective Apnl 11, 2002 (67 FR 1‘?:536); April 14, 2006, effective June 13, 2006 (71 FR
19442); and October 30, 2006, effective December 29, 2006 (71 FR 63253).

0. States, including Washington, are not authorized to implement the RCRA
hazardous waste export requirements found at 40 C.F.R. Part 262, Subparts E and H because of
the federal government’s special role in foreign policy matters. Specifically, EPA has retained
the authority to transmit export information to foreign countries through the Department of
State and to transmit Acknowledgement of Consent to the exporter. However, Washington has
incorporated 40 C.F.R. Part 262, Subparts E and H by reference into its regulations found at
WAC 173-303-230(1) and requires that copies of any forms or reports submitted to EPA as
required by 40 C.F.R. Part 262, Subpart E also be submitt‘ed to the Washington Department of
Ecology (the ‘“Department”).

10. Regulations promulgated pursuant to HSWA authority take effect in authorized
statc;,s at the same time that they take effect in unauthorized states. EPA carries outl HSWA
requirements and prohibitions in authorized states until EPA authorizes the state to do so.

1. The conditional exclusion from the definition of solid waste for cathode ray
tubes (“CRTs”) exported in accordance with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 261.40 was
promulgated pursuant to HSWA authority. Washington is not currently authorized for the
CRT conditional exclusion found in 40 C.F.R. § 261.40.

12. Pursuant to Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), if EPA determines
that a person has violated any requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA, Sections 3001-3023e of
RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-6939¢, EPA may issue an order to require compliance immediately

or within a specified time.



13 Section 3008 of RCRA, 4?:; US.C§ 6928 provides that authorized state
hazardous waste programs are carried out under Sublitie T of RCRA. Therefore, a violaiion of
any requirerent of an authonzed state hazardous wasie program 1S a violation of & requirement
of Subtitle C of RCRA.

14, Pursuant to Section 3001 of RORA, 42 UR.C. § 6821, EPA promulgated
regulations to define what matenals are “solid wastes,” and of these solid wastes, what wastes
are “hazardons wastes.” These regulations are set forth 1n 40 TF R, Part 261,

15, Pursuant to 40 C.F R, § 261.2, a “solid wasie” i8 any discarded material that ts
not otherwise excluded by regulation, |

i6. Parsuantio 40 CFR. 3§ 261 4(2)(22)Gi) and 261.40, used, intact CRTs
exported for recycling are solid wastes if they are speculatively acourmnlated or the exporier
fails to notify EPA of an intended gxport sixty {60} days before the CRTs are scheduled to
Iezw.e the United States, or the exporter fails to obtain an “Acknowledgement of Comnsent” from
the receiving country, which must accompany the shapment. Persons who export used, tagt
CRTe for reuse pursuant (o the conditional exclusion from the definition of solid waste must
send a one-time notification to EPA documenting the person’s infent to export used, intagt
CRTs for reuse, and must retain normal business records associated with these activities
demonstrating that each shipment will be reused for at lesst theee years from the date of export,
pursuant 10 40 O F K. § 261 41

V7. BSection 3002 of RURA, 42 U S.C. § 6922, requires EPA 1o evinblish standards
applicable to generators of hazardous wastes. These standards are codified at 40 CFR. Part

262 and include requirements such as determining whether a waste is hazardous, managing




waste in proper containers, labeling and dating containers, inspecting waste storage areas,
training, and planning for emergencies. Washington has adopted comparable requirements that
are part of its authorized hazardous waste management program and codified at WAC 173-303.
The Washington Administrative Code regulates “dangerous wastes.” For purposes of this
Order, the terms “dangerous waste” and “hazardous waste™ shall be interchangeable.

18.  Section 3017 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6938, authorizes EPA to promulgate
regulations necessary to prevent the unauthorized export of hazardous waste. Such regulations
are set forth in 40 C.F.R. §§ 262.50-58; 262.80-89. 40 C.F.R. § 262.52 prohibits exports of
hazardous waste without: (a) notification to EPA of intent to export as required under 40
C.F.R. § 262.53; (b) consent of the receiving country; (c;.a copy of the EPA “Acknowledgment
of Consent” to the shipment attached to the manifest (or shipping paper for exports by water
[bulk shipment]); and (d) the shipment conforming with the terms of the receiving country’s

consent.

IV. GENERAL AND FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

19. Respondent W and E International Trading (“W and E”) is a “‘person,” as that
term is defined by Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15), and WAC 303-173-040,
doing business in the state of Washington.

20. Respondent W and E sometimes identifies itself as “WANDE International
Trading,”

21.  Respondent W and E has specified its business address as 1534 Summerficld

Drive, Allen, Texas 75002.




22, Respondent Wand Eis Aot incorporated or registered to do business in
Washington, Oregon, or Texas.

23, Respendent Zilang Zin is & natural persen, and a “person,” a8 that ferm is
defined by Section 1004{15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(13), and WAC 303-173.040, domg
business in the state of Waghington,

24, Respondent Ziliang Zhu also represenis himself a8 and conducts business under
the name of “Bric Zha”

25 Respondent Ziliang Zhu personally conducts business activities and holds
hunself out as a representative and owner of W and B Infernational Trading.”

26, Respondent W and E and Respondent Zhu are engaged in the busingess of
arranging for the export of used electronic equipmaent and parts, mchuding color computer
monitors. These computer monitors contain CRTx.

27 On April 24, 2009, W and E expoited shipping container number
MBKLU465188] (also identified ay TTN# X20000420025282) (herematter referred to as the
“{Container”} from the Port of Tacoma, Washingtol, to Hong Keng, China, The confent of the
shipment was described by W and E as "plastic scrap.”

28, The Container contmned approximately 539 used color computer monifoss of
assoried makes and niodels, some of which had broken plashe casings and/or severed power
cords. The container alse neluded three pallets of discarded used computer conlral processing

units, five boxes of used computer kevboards, and one used lgad asid battery.

e




29.  OnMay 31, 2009, the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department
notified EPA that the Hong Kong government had intercepted the Container at the Port of
Hong Kong and had returned it to the original port of dispatch (i.e., the Port of Tacoma).

30. The CRTs includea in the Container are solid wastes because Respondents did
not notify EPA of their intent to export used intact CRTs sixty (60) days prior to the export,
and Respondents did not receive consent from Hong Kong to receive the container, as required
by the conditional exclusion at 40 C.F.R. § 261.39(a)(5).

31.  The CRTs shipped by Respondents constitute “hazardous waste” as defined in
Section 1004(5) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(5), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 260.10 and 261.3, and
“dangerous wastes” as defined in WAC 173-303-040. Ct;!or computer monitors contain an
average of four pounds of lead and studies show that CRTs leach lead at levels considerably
above the toxicity characteristic regulatory level used to classify lead-containing wastes as
haza'rdous (40 C.F.R. § 261.24(b)). In addition, CRTs often contain mercury, cadmium, and
arsenic.

32.  WAC 173-303-040 defines the term “generator" as any person, by site, whose
act or process produces dangerous waste or whose act first causes a dangerous waste to become
subject to regulation.

33. 40 C.F.R. §262.51 defines the term “primary exporter” as any person whao is
required to originate the manifest for a shipment of hazardous waste in accordance with 40
C.F.R. Part 262, Subpart B, or equivalent state provision, which specifies a treatment, storage,
or disposal facility in a receiving country as the facility to which the hazardous waste will be

sent, and any intermediary arranging for the export.
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34.  Respondent W and E is a “generator” as that term is defined by WAC 173-303-

040.

35.  Respondent W and E 1s a “primary exporter” as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R.
§ 262.51.

36.  Respondent Ziliang Zhu is a “generator” as that term is defined by WAC 173-
303-040.

37. Respondent Ziliang Zhu is a “primary exporter” as that term is defined in 40
C.F.R. § 262.51.

38.  Respondent SM Metals is incorporated irfthe state of Washington, with its
principal place of business located at 2608 104th Street Court South, #J2, Lakewood,
Washington 98499.

39. Respondent SM Metals 1s a “person,” as that term 1s defined by Section
1004(15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6903(15), and WAC 303-173-040, doing business in the state
of Washington.

40. Prior to their export, the CRTs in the Container had been collected and prepared
for shipment and disposal by Respondent SM Metals at the SM Metals facility in Lakewood,
Washington.

41.  Respondent SM Metals generated CRT wastes and other electronic wastes when
it collected them and prepared them for export and disposal in Hong Kong.

42, Respondent SM Metals is a “‘generator” as that term is defined by WAC 173-

303-040.



43.  Respondent SM Metals isa “primary exporter” as that term 1s defined in 40
C.F.R. §262.51.

V. VIOLATIONS

COUNT I: Failure to Make a Dangerous Waste Determination

44, WAC 173-303-70 requires a person who generates a solid waste to determine if
that solid waste is a dangerous waste or an extremely hazardous waste.

45.  Respondents failed to make a determination whether the CRTs and other solid
wastes included in the Container were dangerous or extremely hazardous wastes in accordance
with the requirements of WAC 173-303-70.

<
46.  Respondents’ failure to make this determination is a violation of WAC 173-303-

70.

COUNT 2: Failure to obtain an EPA RCRA Identification Number and Notify the
Washington Department of Ecology of Dangerous Waste Activities

47. WAC 173-303-60(1) requires any person who generates, transports, offers for
transport, or transfers a dangerous waste to have a current EPA/state RCRA identification
number that identifies the location and nature of the activities,

48. WAC 173-303-60(2) requires every person who must have an EPA/state RCRA
identification number to notify the Department of the nature of its dangerous waste activities
by submitting a completed Washington State Dangerous Waste Site Identification Form to the
Department.

49.  Respondents did not, at any time relevant to this Order, obtain an EPA/state

RCRA I[dentification Number,



50, Respondents did not, at Jn\y time relevant to this Order, notily the Department
of its activities that require them fo obiain and complete a Washington State Dangerous Waste
Site ldentification Form.

81, Respondents’ failure to obtain an EPA/state RCRA Identification Mumber and
to notily the Departiient of s dangsrous waste activities is a vialation of WAC 173-303-60{1)
armd (2},

COUNT 3 Failure (o Prepare 3 Hazardons Waste Manifest

52, WAC 173-303-180 requires any generator who transpaorts or offers for transport
a dangerous waste to prepare a manifest and follow the procedures specified tn that s&z_;;_i:i{;fav

53 Respondenis transported and offered for iZz;rzsg}art the dangerous waste %g:z- the
Container without prepanng a manifest to accompany the ghipmeat,

54, Respondents’ fatlure to prepare & ngrifost for the dangorous wastes in the

Co;ﬁaiz‘:er i avielation of WAC 173-303-180,

COUNT 4: Fgiluce to Properly Packaze a Dangerous Waste for Transport

550 WAL 173-303-190(1) requires any generator, before transporting or offering for
offsite transpoit, any dangerous waste to package the waste in accordance with the

requirements of the Department of Transportation (*DOT”) regulntions on packag

C.F.R. Parts 173, 178, and 179,
56,  Respondents offered for transport and/or transported dangerons wiastes in the
Container without packaging those wastes in conformity with 49 CF R Parts 173, 178, and

179,

-11-




57.  Respondents’ failure to properly package the wastes included in the Container
in accordance with the above-referenced DOT regulations is a violation of WAC 173-303-
190(1).

COUNT 5: Failure to Properly Label and Mark Dangerous Waste

58. WAC 173-303-190(2) and (3) requires any generator who transports or offers
for transport a dangerous waste to label and mark each package containing the waste in
accordance with the DOT regulations found in 49 C.F.R. Part 172.

59.  The Respondents oftered for transport and/or transported dangerous wastes in
the Container without labeling or marking those wastes in conformity with 49 C.F.R. Parts
173.

60.  Respondents’ failure to mark each package of hazardous waste in accordance

with the above-mentioned DOT regulations is a violation of WAC 173-303-190(2) and (3).

COUNT 6: Failure to Notify EPA of Intent to Export a Hazardous Waste

61. 40 C.F.R. § 262.53(a) requires a primary exporter of a hazardous waste to notify
EPA of an intended export before such waste is scheduled to leave the United States, at least
sixty (60) days before an imitial shipment is intended to be shipped off site. The content and
procedures for providing this notice are specified in 40 C.F.R. § 262.53(b). Following this
notification EPA, in conjunction with the U.S. Department of State, contacts the intended
receiving and transit countries to verify their Acknowledgement of Consent to receive the
hazardous waste, and communicates this consent or lack thereof to the primary exporter.

62.  Respondents failed to notify EPA of their intent to export the hazardous waste

in the Container prior to their export to Hong Kong on April 24, 2009.
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63, Respondents’ failuse to ﬁ-roviée notice to EPA of their intention to export a
hazardous waste at teast 60 days prior to the expoert, in accordance with the procedures
eetablished in 40 CF.R. § 262.53n) and (b}, 15 a viclahon of 40 CF.R. § 262.53.

COUNT 7: ilesal Export of Hazardons Wagte

£4, 40 CF R § 262 52 prohibiig exporis of hazardovs wasie from the Linited States
except in accoriance with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 262, Subpart E, and Part 283,
Expaorts of hazardous waste are prolabited vnless: {1) notification of intent to export has been
provided in accordance with 40 CF.R. § 262.53; (2) the receiving couniry has congented o

accept the hazardous waster {3) & copy of the Acknowladgement of Consent to the shipment

R

manifest {or shipping paper for exports by water (bulk shipment)}; and {4) the hezardous waste
shipment conforms to the terms of the receiving country’s written consent as reflected tn the
Acl{nowledgment of Congent,

65, Respondents” shipment of hazardous wasls inthe Comtatverwas axported from

the Port of Tacoma, Washington, to Hong Kong on April 24, 2609, without a primary exporter
providing prioy notics fo EPA of is inlent 1o export the waste.

66.  Hong Kong did not consent to receive the hazardoas waste in the Contabur o
issue an Acknowledgement of Consent (o receive the waste in the Container,

67.  An Acknowledgement of Consent did not accompany the shipment of the
Contatner to Hong Kong.

48], The hazadous waste in the Contamer Sl not conform o the terms of an

Acknowiedgement of Consent.
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69.  Respondents’ activities rélated to the export of the Container did not comply
with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.52(a)-(d). Therefore, Respondents illegally exported
hazardous waste in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 262.52.

VI. COMPLIANCE ORDER

70.  Based on the foregoing findings, Respondents are hereby ordered to achieve and
maintain compliance with the requirements of WAC 173-303, 40 C.F.R. Part 262, Subpart E,
and any other applicable requirements. Specifically:

a. Within ten (10) days of the effective date of a Final Order, Respondents shall

submit to EPA a detailed inventory of each of the items currently in the Container and

shall make a dangerous waste determination rega::iing those items in accordance with
the procedures in WAC 173-303-070(3).

b. Within twenty (20) days of the effective date of a Final Order, Respondents

shall submit for EPA approval a Compliance Plan detailing how the Respondents

intend to manage each item in the Container (i.e., for reuse, recycle, or discard) in
accordance with the WAC and 40 C.F.R. Parts 261-265, and any other applicable state

or federal laws and implementing regulations. The Compliance Plan shall include a

schedule and requirement to submit documentation to EPA demonstrating timely

performance of each element of the Compliance Plan.

C. Respondents shall not remove or transport any items from the Container without

prior written approval from EPA.

d. Respondents shall properly dispose of the contents of the Container no later

than sixty (60) days from the effective date of a Final Order. Within five (5) days of

-14-




completion of all elements of lh:s :EPA-approved Compliance Plan, Respondents shall

submit to EPA a Completion Report which details the actual disposition of each item

listed on the Container inventory required pursuant to paragraph 70(a) of this Order,

provides copies of supporting documentation demonstrating full completion of the

activities described in the Compliance Plan, and details the total cost of Respondents’

actions to implement the Compliance Plan.

71, The information requested in this Order is not subject to the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1980, 44 U.S.C. § 3501 ef seq.

72.  Respondent shall submit any information, reports, and/or notices required by
this Order or the Compliance Plan to: |

Xiangyu Chu, Compliance Officer

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 10

Office of Comphance and Enforcement

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900

Mail Stop: OCE-127

Seattie, Washington 98101

73.  If Respondents fail to comply with the requirements of this Order within the
time specified, Section 3008(c) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(c), provides for further
enforcement action in which EPA may seek the imposition of penalties of up to $37,500 for
each day of continued noncompliance, 1n addition to any other penalties that may be assessed
for past or ongoing violations.

74. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.37(b), this Order shall automatically become

a Final Order unless, no later than thirty (30) days afier this Complaint and Compliance Order

1s served, Respondent requests a heaning pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.15.

A5




VIL ASSE-STSMENT OF PENALTIES

75. EPA reserves its right to assess penalties and/or seck additional appropriate
injunctive relief for violations of the requirements cited in Section V of this Order, as provided
by Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.

VII. OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING AND FILE ANSWER

76. Under Section 3008(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 22.15,
Respondents have a right to request a hearing on the issues raised in this Order. Any such
hearing would be conducted in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part 22. A request for a hearing
must be incorporated in a written answer filed with the Hearing Clerk within thirty (30)
days of service of this Order. In their answer(s), Respondents may contest any material
fact contained in the Order. The answer shall directly admit, deny, or explain each of the
factual allegations contained in the Order and shall state: (1) the circumstances or arguments
alleged to constitute the grounds of defense; (2) the facts that Respondents intend to place at
1ssue; and (3) whether a hearing is requested. Where Respondents have no knowledge as to a
particular factual allegation and so state, the allegation is deemed denied. Any failure of
Respondents to admit, deny, or explain any material fact contained in the Order will constitute
an admission of that allegation.

Respondents’ answer(s) should be sent to:

Carol Kennedy, Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10

1200 Sixth Ave., Suite 900

Mail Stop: ORC-158

Seattle, WA 98101

Tel: 206-553-0242

77 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R, §22.37(b) this Compliance Order shall
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automatically become a final order uﬁless, no later than thirty (30) days after the Order

is served, the Respondent requests a hearing pursuant to 40 C.F.R, § 22.15.

FOR COMPLAINANT U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Dated: /77/{%/,?

. O |~
Office Cor]r@arée and Enforcement
EPA Regron 10

PARTY DESIGNATED TO RECEIVE SERVICE ON BEHALF OF THE COMPLAINANT:

Shirin Venus, Assistant Regional Counsel o
EPA Region 10

1200 Sixth Ave., Suite 900

Mail Stop: ORC-158

Seattle, WA 98101

Tel: 206-553-4194

-17-




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the original and one true and correct copy of the foregoing
Complaint and Compliance Order, Docket No. RCRA-10-2009-0206 were hand-
delivered to the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region

10, 1200 Sixth Avenue, Seattle, Washington 98101, on this 14" of July 2009.

DATED this /¢ day of Qg'/g 2009

Lisa Bingham

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 10
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